Questions for Wind Farm

1.  Question:  To what extend will the Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan referenced in Section 0E001 affect turbine performance?
Answer:  The Quality assurance surveillance plan is to ensure contractor conformance to the performance statement of work.  NNSA will provide additional details as to what elements potential Offerors will be required to address in their QASP.  For now, the intent of the QASP is to ensure that the contractor has trained and qualified management and personnel capable of performing their assigned work as well as having the management structure and quality improvement processes to detect and prevent quality problems or to identify, control, and correct items, services, and processes that do not meet established standards or requirements.  Furthermore, the Government desires that the contractor perform work consistent with technical standards, administrative controls, and other hazard controls in compliance with all applicable regulatory and contract requirements.  Thus, NNSA anticipates that the QASP will impact turbine performance because an element of the QASP will be performance and design such that NNSA wants to ensure that all design items and processes use sound engineering/scientific principles and appropriate standards and that such designs incorporate applicable requirements with appropriate controls and validations.  NNSA further anticipates that the performance/inspection and acceptance testing phase will include quality controls/processes to ensure that the wind turbine assembly demonstrates the guaranteed annual energy and energy-related cost savings.   

2. Question:  What level of influence will the DOE’s Contracting Officer’s Representative, as described in Section 952.242-70, have over the Contractor?  Will the provided “technical direction” be mandatory on the Contractor?

Answer:  The COR does not provide guidance and can direct the contractor consistent with the duties/responsibilities of the COR under 0G001 952.242-70 Technical Direction and DOE-G-1009(b) which provides, “The Program Manager shall receive and execute, on behalf of the Contractor, such technical directions as the COR may issue within the terms and conditions of the contract.”  See also paragraph 952.242-70(e) which provides that the contractor must proceed promptly with the…technical direction issued by the COR…and if the contractor believes that the technical direction is out of scope, it must notify the CO.    Further, PWS C.5.2.1 Contracting Officer Representative (COR) provides, “The COR is a representative of the CO and will participate in the administration of this contract except where stated. After contract award, a brief resume of each COR, their authority, and their duties will be furnished to the contractor.  The COR will notify the contract manager when discrepancies occur and the COR will request corrective action. The COR will make written records of discrepancies and will ask the contract manager (or authorized representative) to initial the record. Any matter concerning a change in scope, price, terms or conditions of this contract shall be referred to the contracting officer and not to the COR.  The COR’s duties/responsibilities are delineated in Section 0G001 Technical Direction and DOE-G-1009(b) and that any technical direction given must be consistent with 0G001 952.242-70.    

3. Will the government be required to provide notice of “Potential Contractor Interface with Other Contractors and/or government Employees” as described in Section DOE-H-1025?
Answer:  DOE-H-1025 requires the contractor to cooperate fully with the new contractor, as directed by the CO or COR.  It is reasonable to expect that the contractor can make any preparations/accommodations as necessary (as needed).
3a. Question:  In the event the Government does award a simultaneous contract for on-site work or services to another contractor can and to what extent will that contract affect the contractor’s payments and responsibilities?  In other words, “In the event another contractor providing other services is using the premises and prevents my company from using the premises.”

Answer:  Pursuant to Section B Option CLIN 0003 of the RFP, the Government has the option to have the contractor provide all maintenance-related services after expiration of the 5-year warranty period.  However, if the option is not exercised and there is a need for a contractor to provide maintenance services, the Government will make appropriate arrangements at that time with the ESCO and maintenance contractor regarding roles/responsibilities, site visits, access and control procedures, security, etc

3b.   Question:  Does this provision have effect for the life of the project, or will all contracts be awarded prior to the start of the project?

Answer:  The contract clause DOE-H-1025 will be a provision for the life of the contract.  

4.  Is the green purchasing initiative described in section DOE-H-1049 a factor that will be considered in choosing the contractor?
Answer:  The clause states that “The contractor shall exert its best efforts to provide its services in a manner that will promote the natural environment and protect the health and well being of …..”    The Government is interested in achieving savings and the best MW cost per hour.  
5.  Are the Davis Bacon Wage Rates adjustable based on industry-wide averages?
Answer:  The Department of Labor provides the labor rates for a particular industry annually and the rates take into account any adjustments based on the particular industry.  The Davis-Bacon and Related Acts, apply to contractors and subcontractors performing on federally funded or assisted contracts in excess of $2,000 for the construction, alteration, or repair (including painting and decorating) of public buildings or public works. Davis-Bacon Act and Related Act contractors and subcontractors must pay their laborers and mechanics employed under the contract no less than the locally prevailing wages and fringe benefits for corresponding work on similar projects in the area. The Davis-Bacon Act directs the Department of Labor to determine such locally prevailing wage rates. The Davis-Bacon Act applies to contractors and subcontractors performing work on federal or District of Columbia contracts. For prime contracts in excess of $100,000, contractors and subcontractors must also, under the provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as amended, pay laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen, at least one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for all hours worked over 40 in a workweek. The overtime provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act may also apply to DBA-covered contracts.   See also FAR Subpart Part 22.4 for additional information.  
5a.  Similarly, is there any sub-contractor of service provider to whom the federal wage rates to not apply?
Answer:     See answer to 5 above.
5b.  Are there any potential exceptions to using the Davis Bacon Wage Rates?
Answer:  The wage rates for bona fide supervisory employees are not regulated under the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts because their duties are primarily administrative or executive in nature rather than those of laborers or mechanics. However, such employees who devote more than 20 percent of their time during a workweek to mechanic or laborer duties are laborers and mechanics for the time so spent, and must be paid at least the appropriate wage rates specified in the wage determination. Employees who are bona fide executive, administrative, or professional employees as defined under the Fair Labor Standards Act at 29 CFR Part 541 are not covered by the Davis-Bacon Act.  In addition, apprentices may be employed at less than predetermined rates if they are in an apprenticeship program registered with the Department of Labor or with a state apprenticeship agency recognized by the Department. Trainees may be employed at less than predetermined rates if they are in a training program certified by the Department.  Finally, contractors and subcontractors on prime contracts in excess of $100,000 are required, pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, to pay employees one and one-half times their basic rates of pay for all hours over 40 worked on covered contract work in a workweek. Covered contractors and subcontractors are also required to pay employees weekly and to submit weekly certified payroll records to the contracting agency.  See also FAR 22.401 for definitions regarding “apprentice.

6.  Under the proposed structure in the Draft Solicitation, what is the purpose of providing the Investor Deal Summary Template?
Answer:  This provides a summary of the finance offer being proposed.  It gives a better understanding to the Government of the overall financing being offered.
6a. Who does Pantex foresee as the potential investor?
Answer:  The ESCO is responsible for the financial investor.  The Government does not know who the investor(s) are until proposals are received.  
6b.  What is a guarantee of cost savings:  does this inquire as to the guaranteed availability of wind turbines, or specific dollar amounts of the savings to Pantex over the life of the project?
Answer:  Energy savings performance contracts (ESPCs) allow Federal agencies to accomplish energy savings projects without up-front capital costs and without special Congressional appropriations.  An ESPC is a partnership between a Federal agency and an energy service company (ESCO). The ESCO conducts a comprehensive energy audit for the Federal facility and identifies improvements to save energy. In consultation with the Federal agency, the ESCO designs and constructs a project that meets the agency's needs and arranges the necessary funding. The ESCO guarantees that the improvements will generate energy cost savings sufficient to pay for the project over the term of the contract. After the contract ends, all additional cost savings accrue to the agency. Contract terms up to 25 years are allowed.

7.  What type of funding does Pantex anticipate using?

Answer:  As discussed in the response to Question #6, the ESCO is responsible for all of the up-front capital costs.  Therefore, this project is not federally funded.  Consistent with with an attachment in Section J, Guaranteed Cost Savings and Contractor Payments, the ESCOs will provide its estimated annual cost savings and proposed guaranteed annual cost savings based on the M&V report for each year of the implementation period up to 25 years maximum.  Annual contractor payments will be approved consistent with this process.

7a.  For example, does Pantex anticipate that the DOE will fully fund the project?  

Answer:  See response to Questions #6 and 7 above.

7b.  What is Pantex’s plan for funding if it does not receive DOE funding?  

Answer:  See response to questions #6 and 7 above.  

8.  The following statement appears on page 5 of the Wind Resource Assessment Report on Page 4. “Simple paybacks ranged between 6-16 years, assuming a cash purchase for the wind turbines and the foregoing of the PTC accelerated depreciation and US Treasury grants.”    What financial model or assumptions did Pantex/NREL/DOE rely upon the make that statement?
Answer:  Pantex did an Economic Analysis and found the simple payback would be between 6-16 years.  From 2005 to 2008 electric rates were raised by 7.69% yearly.  Therefore, based on past history (electric rates found in the website), Pantex assumed the payback would be between 6-16 years.    

9.  Does Pantex have any SODAR data or met tower date in addition to what was provided by NREL from the Washburn site 10 miles south of the Pantex facility?
Answer:  Yes, we have data from 2 met towers, and 1 SORDAR unit on or near the site.  We will post that data to the website.

10.  What is expected date for awarding the project:
Answer:  The Government anticipates making contract award by May 2012
10a. What is the expected date for beginning construction?
Answer:  The Government expects long-lead times for wind turbines.  Based on that, the construction should begin 6-8 months after award.  This is just an estimate.

10b. What is the expected date for completion of the facility with commissioning?
Answer:   The completion date will vary with each offeror’s proposal and underlying assumptions based on the requirements of the PWS. 
11.  The following statement appears on page 4 of the Performance Work Statement Revised: “The Pantex Site Office is located in a certified electrical service territory, which requires Pantex to own generators from which it receives power at the Site.  Any excess power from generators would be sold back to Xcel Energy by way of the Qualifying Facility (QF) Status.”  As Group NIRE suggested in Response to PPA questions, would Pantex be willing to entertain a lease-to-own arrangement?
Answer:  The short answer is no.    Given the specific characteristics and requirements of an ESPC contract, the “lease-to-own” arrangement is not an option for the Government.  
12.  Is Pantex willing to and able to provide past utility bills in order to facilitate a project cost analysis?
Answer:    We will have billing numbers back into the 1990’s.  This will be posted to the website.  
13.  Will the power be sold at a fixed or variable rate?
Answer:  The actual rate that Xcel will buy the power will vary hourly, monthly and yearly.  Additional information will be provided to the website as it becomes available.  However, for now, assume that the excess power will be sold a fixed rate. 
14. Consollation Energy, a qualified Energy Service Company, has executed a contract with the US Department of State where the wind farm is owned by the developer, and the power is sold through a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA).  Please give a reason why Pantex is not considering this same model 
Answer:  Given the specific characteristics and requirements of an ESPC contract, the “Power Purchase Agreement “arrangement is not an option for the Government.  




Group Two Questions
1. Effective electric rate for electricity generated.  In order to provide a fair comparison of bids on an apples-to-apples basis, we respectfully suggest that NNSA provide a clear definition to bidders for how to value the electricity generated.  There are three components to calculating the value of the electricity generated that should be treated consistently by all bidders:  
(a) Displaced retail power purchases.  On-site generation displaces grid purchases from Xcel Energy at retail rates (please confirm that this is currently the LGS-T rate).  Although the average cost to NNSA for retail power in FY 2008, based on data provided in the RFP, was $0.0588 per kWh, this is no doubt made up of demand charges and energy charges.  Given the intermittent nature of wind, we can assume that the demand charge will not be reduced.  Thus, the value of the power generated should be calculated at the current summer and winter energy rates.  Please define this rate (and any annual inflation rate over the subsequent 25 years) so all bidders will use the same value in their projections.     
Answer:  Energy rates to be based on Electric Tariff section No. IV, Sheet No. IV-117.
Based on Pantex historical data rates have increased approximately 7.7% per year.
Annual inflation rate 2.3%	
(b) Standby Service power costs.  According to the current Xcel Energy Standby Service tariff, NNSA will be required to pay for back-up or stand-by power.  There is a 2-1/2 X difference in these rates depending upon whether the Customer Usage Hours are greater or less than 100 hours per month.  Given the intermittent nature of wind power, it seems likely that the Usage Hours will exceed 100 hours most months.  (This rate seems to have been designed for cogeneration plants more than renewable energy projects.)  Bidders should be required to present modeling to confirm monthly Usage Hours and therefore justify the Standby power charges at current rates.  NNSA should also provide a defined inflation assumption to use for future such rates over the next 25 years.  
Answer:  There is an annual inflation rate of 2.3%.  The contractor will be able to project their generation based on the wind speed data that was provided and compare that to their turbine operating characteristics to get net output information of power being supplied to Pantex.  The Government will establish a monthly demand and the stand by rate will not be applied. The contractor is aware that we take power at the 115kV level; however, it makes a difference in their rate calculations under Tariff Number IV-181.  The information in the design shows that we have 4 transformers with a totalizing meter that is used to combine usage from all 4 meters and combined to establish the plant monthly billing information that was also provided.

(c) Surplus power sales back to Xcel Energy at Adjusted Non-Firm Energy Cost Rates (ANFEC).  Excess power sold back to Xcel Energy will be purchased at the ANFEC rate, which is market-based and changes each month.  Please provide data with the RFP showing what this rate has been on average over the past two years.  Also, please confirm whether “Franchise Fees” would apply here, and if so their value.  We suggest all bidders be required to use the same average ANFEC rate (and a defined inflation rate) so bids can be evaluated on a consistent basis.   
Answer:  Excess energy rates $0.03 KWH to be based on Electric Tariff section No. IV, Sheet No. IV-117.

2. Basis of financial evaluation of offers.  How will NNSA determine “best value” when comparing, different financing terms, different guaranteed savings, and different net savings to the government?  We respectfully suggest that the most consistent metric for determining best value is the net present value (NPV) of the net savings to the government (Guaranteed Savings minus Annual Contractor Payments, or column (e) minus column (f) in Financial Schedule 1).  This approach incorporates all three evaluation factors noted at the industry day (term, savings-to-payment ratio, and $/kWh) and does so in a way that provides a clear and consistent metric across all bids.  To simplify this evaluation further, we suggest that all bidders be required to present the financials over a 20-year term.  
Answer:  The best value trade-off will occur between technical, past performance and price; with the following price factors being considered: price per k/hr, overall guaranteed savings, and contract term.   

3. Extend bid period beyond 45 days.  We appreciate the “head start” afforded bidders by having made the draft RFP available and hosting the industry day.  Nonetheless, when the final RFP comes out, a 30 to 45 day turn-around will be extremely tight given the need to finalize construction pricing, model the system, and secure financing.  In addition, we expect there may still be some questions even after the final RFP.  We respectfully suggest the NNSA consider a bidding period of 60 days, plus time required to answer any final round of questions.  
Answer:    Because of the complexity of this requirement, the Government will advertise this requirement for 52 days.

4. Cancellation ceiling.  RFP Attachment 7 explaining the financial schedules includes a note under Schedule 5 that says the cancellation ceiling schedule establishes the maximum termination liability, and that “Actual termination charges will be negotiated as part of any cancellation or termination settlement, per established FAR requirements.”  In order to obtain financing for this project, the cancellation schedule must represent firm prices not subject to future negotiation.  Please revise this provision accordingly.  
Answer If there is a termination or buy down, the contractor will submit a proposal.  Schedule 5 is just an estimation tool used by the Government to predict the total cost of termination.   

5.  Additional utility electric data.  Please provide additional electric usage and cost data to facilitate proposal development: (a) Hourly (or more frequent) interval (kW) data for the past two years in electronic form, (b) Updated actual utility consumption and cost data through the most recent month in 2011.  Data should include monthly usage (kWh) and demand (kW) and cost ($).  
Answer:  The Government will be posting previous billings and post the most current bills onto the website for this solicitation

6. Operation of plant.  PWS Section C.5.4 – NNSA Personnel Training Plan says the training of NNSA personnel and/or NNSA contractors will also include: “. . . turbine adjustments and maintenance.”  Please confirm that the Contractor will operate the plant (which is clear in PWS Section C.6.2) and that NNSA personnel or their subcontractors will not perform any adjustments to the plant or plant maintenance without the express written consent of the Contractor.
Answer:   Due to warranty issues, the Contractor will be operating the equipment and anyone else will have to get written consent of the Contractor.

7. Savings guarantee and M&V plan.  PWS Section C.5.5 says: “The approval of the Government of this Post-Installation Report shall constitute Government acceptance of the Contractor’s energy savings performance guarantee.”  This implies that the Contractor does not need to further guarantee the energy cost savings over the remaining years of the contract term.  However, Financial Schedule 1 lists Guaranteed Annual Cost Savings under column (e) for all years of the contract term.  Please clarify whether the Contractor is required to guarantee the energy cost savings for all years of the contract or just the first year Post-Installation.  
Answer:  The Post-Installation report is a one-time report that demonstrates the guaranteed annual energy and energy-related and cost savings.  The Measurement & Verification (M&V) report is due annually.  However, it is up to the contractor to propose a system that achieves the required guaranteed energy savings and the contractor has up to 25 years to demonstrate its technical approach and feasibility.  

8. Research activities and their impact on operations and savings.  The overview of potential NWRC research initiatives provided with the RFP says on page 2 that the NWRC and its collaborators will have the ability to: change out parts on specific turbines; turn turbines on and off to study wake effects and other research topics; and make small adjustments to turbine controls, including yaw and pitch.  These research activities could obviously affect our guaranteed energy cost savings.  Please clarify that NNSA will automatically assume energy cost savings guarantees have been met during any period that such research activities take place.  Also, the cost of such research activities, including cost of Contractor’s time and potentially restoring the equipment to its original condition, shall be reimbursed as an additional payment to the Contractor separate from the regular energy cost savings payments under Schedule 1.
Answer:  The Government is re-looking at this issue, of NWRC Research initiatives as stated on page 2 of the RFP.

9. On-site meteorological towers.  Please provide the data, in electronic form, from the local met towers on the Pantex site as well as any analysis that has been performed on that data to date.  This will help us to supplement the data from the NREL Wind Resource Assessment Report, which was based on met tower data from the Washburn site roughly 10 miles away.     
Answer:  INL report attached that analyzed Pantex data
Additional data from 2005 to 2011 for met tower on northeast corner of Plant site attached for loading onto the web site.
Data from two additional towers, one on plant site and one in middle of proposed wind farm and the SODAR unit,(located on South end of proposed wind farm site), is available at www.skyserve.net.  
Skyserve user name is “pantexuser”, password is “ptex#123”.  This site will be accessible to all potential bidders until the date the proposals are due to NNSA. 
Prior year data is same as in INL report but website includes current data with the exception of data from July 2010 to July 2011 which is not available.
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